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(2) to violate any of the provisions of section 
206 or section 207 of this title, or any of the 
provisions of any regulation or order of the 
Secretary issued under section 214 of this title; 

(3) to discharge or in any other manner dis-
criminate against any employee because such 
employee has filed any complaint or instituted 
or caused to be instituted any proceeding 
under or related to this chapter, or has testi-
fied or is about to testify in any such pro-
ceeding, or has served or is about to serve on 
an industry committee; 

(4) to violate any of the provisions of section 
212 of this title; 

(5) to violate any of the provisions of section 
211(c) of this title, or any regulation or order 
made or continued in effect under the provi-
sions of section 211(d) of this title, or to make 
any statement, report, or record filed or kept 
pursuant to the provisions of such section or 
of any regulation or order thereunder, know-
ing such statement, report, or record to be 
false in a material respect; and 

(6) to violate any of the provisions of section 
218d of this title.

(b) For the purposes of subsection (a)(1) proof 
that any employee was employed in any place of 
employment where goods shipped or sold in com-
merce were produced, within ninety days prior 
to the removal of the goods from such place of 
employment, shall be prima facie evidence that 
such employee was engaged in the production of 
such goods. 

(June 25, 1938, ch. 676, § 15, 52 Stat. 1068; Oct. 26, 
1949, ch. 736, § 13, 63 Stat. 919; 1950 Reorg. Plan 
No. 6, §§ 1, 2, eff. May 24, 1950, 15 F.R. 3174, 64 
Stat. 1263; Pub. L. 117–328, div. KK, § 102(b)(1), 
Dec. 29, 2022, 136 Stat. 6095.)

Editorial Notes 

AMENDMENTS 

2022—Subsec. (a)(6). Pub. L. 117–328 added par. (6). 
1949—Subsec. (a)(1). Act Oct. 26, 1949, § 13(a), inserted 

provision protecting purchaser in good faith in sale of 
goods produced in violation of this chapter. 

Subsec. (a)(5). Act Oct. 26, 1949, § 13(b), inserted ‘‘or 
any regulation or order made or continued in effect 
under the provisions of section 211(d) of this title’’ after 
‘‘211(c) of this title’’.

Statutory Notes and Related Subsidiaries 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 2022 AMENDMENT 

Pub. L. 117–328, div. KK, § 103(b), Dec. 29, 2022, 136 Stat. 
6096, provided that: ‘‘The amendments made by section 
102(b) [amending this section and section 216 of this 
title] shall take effect on the date that is 120 days after 
the date of enactment of this Act [Dec. 29, 2022].’’

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1949 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by act Oct. 26, 1949, effective ninety days 
after Oct. 26, 1949, see section 16(a) of act Oct. 26, 1949, 
set out as a note under section 202 of this title. 

LIABILITY OF PUBLIC AGENCY FOR DISCRIMINATION 
AGAINST EMPLOYEE FOR ASSERTION OF COVERAGE 

Pub. L. 99–150, § 8, Nov. 13, 1985, 99 Stat. 791, provided 
that: ‘‘A public agency which is a State, political sub-
division of a State, or an interstate governmental agen-
cy and which discriminates or has discriminated 
against an employee with respect to the employee’s 
wages or other terms or conditions of employment be-

cause on or after February 19, 1985, the employee as-
serted coverage under section 7 of the Fair Labor 
Standards Act of 1938 [29 U.S.C. 207] shall be held to 
have violated section 15(a)(3) of such Act [29 U.S.C. 
215(a)(3)]. The protection against discrimination af-
forded by the preceding sentence shall be available 
after August 1, 1986, only for an employee who takes an 
action described in section 15(a)(3) of such Act.’’

Executive Documents 

TRANSFER OF FUNCTIONS 

For transfer of functions of other officers, employees, 
and agencies of Department of Labor, with certain ex-
ceptions, to Secretary of Labor, with power to delegate, 
see Reorg. Plan No. 6 of 1950, §§ 1, 2, 15 F.R. 3174, 64 Stat. 
1263, set out in the Appendix to Title 5, Government Or-
ganization and Employees. 

§ 216. Penalties 

(a) Fines and imprisonment 

Any person who willfully violates any of the 
provisions of section 215 of this title shall upon 
conviction thereof be subject to a fine of not 
more than $10,000, or to imprisonment for not 
more than six months, or both. No person shall 
be imprisoned under this subsection except for 
an offense committed after the conviction of 
such person for a prior offense under this sub-
section. 

(b) Damages; right of action; attorney’s fees and 
costs; termination of right of action 

Any employer who violates the provisions of 
section 206 or section 207 of this title shall be 
liable to the employee or employees affected in 
the amount of their unpaid minimum wages, or 
their unpaid overtime compensation, as the case 
may be, and in an additional equal amount as 
liquidated damages. Any employer who violates 
the provisions of section 215(a)(3) or 218d of this 
title shall be liable for such legal or equitable 
relief as may be appropriate to effectuate the 
purposes of section 215(a)(3) or 218d of this title, 
including without limitation employment, rein-
statement, promotion, and the payment of 
wages lost and an additional equal amount as 
liquidated damages. Any employer who violates 
section 203(m)(2)(B) of this title shall be liable 
to the employee or employees affected in the 
amount of the sum of any tip credit taken by 
the employer and all such tips unlawfully kept 
by the employer, and in an additional equal 
amount as liquidated damages. An action to re-
cover the liability prescribed in the preceding 
sentences may be maintained against any em-
ployer (including a public agency) in any Fed-
eral or State court of competent jurisdiction by 
any one or more employees for and in behalf of 
himself or themselves and other employees simi-
larly situated. No employee shall be a party 
plaintiff to any such action unless he gives his 
consent in writing to become such a party and 
such consent is filed in the court in which such 
action is brought. The court in such action 
shall, in addition to any judgment awarded to 
the plaintiff or plaintiffs, allow a reasonable at-
torney’s fee to be paid by the defendant, and 
costs of the action. The right provided by this 
subsection to bring an action by or on behalf of 
any employee, and the right of any employee to 
become a party plaintiff to any such action, 
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1 See References in Text note below. 
2 So in original. Probably should be ‘‘section’’. 

shall terminate upon the filing of a complaint 
by the Secretary of Labor in an action under 
section 217 of this title in which (1) restraint is 
sought of any further delay in the payment of 
unpaid minimum wages, or the amount of un-
paid overtime compensation, as the case may be, 
owing to such employee under section 206 or sec-
tion 207 of this title by an employer liable there-
for under the provisions of this subsection or (2) 
legal or equitable relief is sought as a result of 
alleged violations of section 215(a)(3) or 218d of 
this title. 

(c) Payment of wages and compensation; waiver 
of claims; actions by the Secretary; limitation 
of actions 

The Secretary is authorized to supervise the 
payment of the unpaid minimum wages or the 
unpaid overtime compensation owing to any em-
ployee or employees under section 206 or section 
207 of this title, and the agreement of any em-
ployee to accept such payment shall upon pay-
ment in full constitute a waiver by such em-
ployee of any right he may have under sub-
section (b) of this section to such unpaid min-
imum wages or unpaid overtime compensation 
and an additional equal amount as liquidated 
damages. The Secretary may bring an action in 
any court of competent jurisdiction to recover 
the amount of unpaid minimum wages or over-
time compensation and an equal amount as liq-
uidated damages. The right provided by sub-
section (b) to bring an action by or on behalf of 
any employee to recover the liability specified 
in the first sentence of such subsection and of 
any employee to become a party plaintiff to any 
such action shall terminate upon the filing of a 
complaint by the Secretary in an action under 
this subsection in which a recovery is sought of 
unpaid minimum wages or unpaid overtime com-
pensation under sections 206 and 207 of this title 
or liquidated or other damages provided by this 
subsection owing to such employee by an em-
ployer liable under the provisions of subsection 
(b), unless such action is dismissed without prej-
udice on motion of the Secretary. Any sums 
thus recovered by the Secretary of Labor on be-
half of an employee pursuant to this subsection 
shall be held in a special deposit account and 
shall be paid, on order of the Secretary of Labor, 
directly to the employee or employees affected. 
Any such sums not paid to an employee because 
of inability to do so within a period of three 
years shall be covered into the Treasury of the 
United States as miscellaneous receipts. In de-
termining when an action is commenced by the 
Secretary of Labor under this subsection for the 
purposes of the statutes of limitations provided 
in section 6(a) of the Portal-to-Portal Act of 1947 
[29 U.S.C. 255(a)], it shall be considered to be 
commenced in the case of any individual claim-
ant on the date when the complaint is filed if he 
is specifically named as a party plaintiff in the 
complaint, or if his name did not so appear, on 
the subsequent date on which his name is added 
as a party plaintiff in such action. The author-
ity and requirements described in this sub-
section shall apply with respect to a violation of 
section 203(m)(2)(B) of this title, as appropriate, 
and the employer shall be liable for the amount 
of the sum of any tip credit taken by the em-

ployer and all such tips unlawfully kept by the 
employer, and an additional equal amount as 
liquidated damages. 

(d) Savings provisions 

In any action or proceeding commenced prior 
to, on, or after August 8, 1956, no employer shall 
be subject to any liability or punishment under 
this chapter or the Portal-to-Portal Act of 1947 
[29 U.S.C. 251 et seq.] on account of his failure to 
comply with any provision or provisions of this 
chapter or such Act (1) with respect to work 
heretofore or hereafter performed in a work-
place to which the exemption in section 213(f) of 
this title is applicable, (2) with respect to work 
performed in Guam, the Canal Zone or Wake Is-
land before the effective date of this amendment 
of subsection (d), or (3) with respect to work per-
formed in a possession named in section 
206(a)(3) 1 of this title at any time prior to the 
establishment by the Secretary, as provided 
therein, of a minimum wage rate applicable to 
such work. 

(e) Civil penalties for certain violations 

(1)(A) Any person who violates the provisions 
of sections 2 212 or 213(c) of this title, relating to 
child labor, or any regulation issued pursuant to 
such sections, shall be subject to a civil penalty 
not to exceed—

(i) $11,000 for each employee who was the 
subject of such a violation; or 

(ii) $50,000 with regard to each such violation 
that causes the death or serious injury of any 
employee under the age of 18 years, which pen-
alty may be doubled where the violation is a 
repeated or willful violation.

(B) For purposes of subparagraph (A), the term 
‘‘serious injury’’ means—

(i) permanent loss or substantial impair-
ment of one of the senses (sight, hearing, 
taste, smell, tactile sensation); 

(ii) permanent loss or substantial impair-
ment of the function of a bodily member, 
organ, or mental faculty, including the loss of 
all or part of an arm, leg, foot, hand or other 
body part; or 

(iii) permanent paralysis or substantial im-
pairment that causes loss of movement or mo-
bility of an arm, leg, foot, hand or other body 
part.

(2) Any person who repeatedly or willfully vio-
lates section 206 or 207 of this title, relating to 
wages, shall be subject to a civil penalty not to 
exceed $1,100 for each such violation. Any person 
who violates section 203(m)(2)(B) of this title 
shall be subject to a civil penalty not to exceed 
$1,100 for each such violation, as the Secretary 
determines appropriate, in addition to being lia-
ble to the employee or employees affected for all 
tips unlawfully kept, and an additional equal 
amount as liquidated damages, as described in 
subsection (b). 

(3) In determining the amount of any penalty 
under this subsection, the appropriateness of 
such penalty to the size of the business of the 
person charged and the gravity of the violation 
shall be considered. The amount of any penalty 
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under this subsection, when finally determined, 
may be—

(A) deducted from any sums owing by the 
United States to the person charged; 

(B) recovered in a civil action brought by 
the Secretary in any court of competent juris-
diction, in which litigation the Secretary shall 
be represented by the Solicitor of Labor; or 

(C) ordered by the court, in an action 
brought for a violation of section 215(a)(4) of 
this title or a repeated or willful violation of 
section 215(a)(2) of this title, to be paid to the 
Secretary.

(4) Any administrative determination by the 
Secretary of the amount of any penalty under 
this subsection shall be final, unless within 15 
days after receipt of notice thereof by certified 
mail the person charged with the violation 
takes exception to the determination that the 
violations for which the penalty is imposed oc-
curred, in which event final determination of 
the penalty shall be made in an administrative 
proceeding after opportunity for hearing in ac-
cordance with section 554 of title 5 and regula-
tions to be promulgated by the Secretary. 

(5) Except for civil penalties collected for vio-
lations of section 212 of this title, sums collected 
as penalties pursuant to this section shall be ap-
plied toward reimbursement of the costs of de-
termining the violations and assessing and col-
lecting such penalties, in accordance with the 
provision of section 9a of this title. Civil pen-
alties collected for violations of section 212 of 
this title shall be deposited in the general fund 
of the Treasury. 

(June 25, 1938, ch. 676, § 16, 52 Stat. 1069; May 14, 
1947, ch. 52, § 5(a), 61 Stat. 87; Oct. 26, 1949, ch. 
736, § 14, 63 Stat. 919; 1950 Reorg. Plan No. 6, §§ 1, 
2, 15 F.R. 3174, 64 Stat. 1263; Aug. 8, 1956, ch. 1035, 
§ 4, 70 Stat. 1118; Pub. L. 85–231, § 1(2), Aug. 30, 
1957, 71 Stat. 514; Pub. L. 87–30, § 12(a), May 5, 
1961, 75 Stat. 74; Pub. L. 89–601, title VI, § 601(a), 
Sept. 23, 1966, 80 Stat. 844; Pub. L. 93–259, §§ 
6(d)(1), 25(c), 26, Apr. 8, 1974, 88 Stat. 61, 72, 73; 
Pub. L. 95–151, § 10, Nov. 1, 1977, 91 Stat. 1252; 
Pub. L. 101–157, § 9, Nov. 17, 1989, 103 Stat. 945; 
Pub. L. 101–508, title III, § 3103, Nov. 5, 1990, 104 
Stat. 1388–29; Pub. L. 104–174, § 2, Aug. 6, 1996, 110 
Stat. 1554; Pub. L. 110–233, title III, § 302(a), May 
21, 2008, 122 Stat. 920; Pub. L. 115–141, div. S, title 
XII, § 1201(b), Mar. 23, 2018, 132 Stat. 1148; Pub. L. 
117–328, div. KK, § 102(b)(2), Dec. 29, 2022, 136 Stat. 
6096.)

Editorial Notes 

REFERENCES IN TEXT 

The Portal-to-Portal Act of 1947, referred to in sub-
sec. (d), is act May 14, 1947, ch. 52, 61 Stat. 84, which is 
classified principally to chapter 9 (§ 251 et seq.) of this 
title. For complete classification of this Act to the 
Code, see Short Title note set out under section 251 of 
this title and Tables. 

The effective date of this amendment of subsection 
(d), referred to in subsec. (d), occurred upon the expira-
tion of 90 days after Aug. 30, 1957. See section 2 of Pub. 
L. 85–231, set out as an Effective Date of 1957 Amend-
ment note under section 213 of this title. 

Section 206(a)(3) of this title, referred to in subsec. 
(d)(3), was repealed and section 206(a)(4) of this title 
was redesignated section 206(a)(3) by Pub. L. 110–28, 
title VIII, § 8103(c)(1)(B), May 25, 2007, 121 Stat. 189. 

CONSTITUTIONALITY 

For information regarding the constitutionality of 
certain provisions of this section, see the Table of Laws 
Held Unconstitutional in Whole or in Part by the Su-
preme Court on the Constitution Annotated website, 
constitution.congress.gov. 

AMENDMENTS 

2022—Subsec. (b). Pub. L. 117–328 substituted ‘‘section 
215(a)(3) or 218d’’ for ‘‘section 215(a)(3)’’ wherever ap-
pearing. 

2018—Subsec. (b). Pub. L. 115–141, § 1201(b)(1), inserted 
‘‘Any employer who violates section 203(m)(2)(B) of this 
title shall be liable to the employee or employees af-
fected in the amount of the sum of any tip credit taken 
by the employer and all such tips unlawfully kept by 
the employer, and in an additional equal amount as liq-
uidated damages.’’ after second sentence and struck 
out ‘‘either of’’ after ‘‘liability prescribed in’’. 

Subsec. (c). Pub. L. 115–141, § 1201(b)(2), inserted at end 
‘‘The authority and requirements described in this sub-
section shall apply with respect to a violation of sec-
tion 203(m)(2)(B) of this title, as appropriate, and the 
employer shall be liable for the amount of the sum of 
any tip credit taken by the employer and all such tips 
unlawfully kept by the employer, and an additional 
equal amount as liquidated damages.’’

Subsec. (e)(2). Pub. L. 115–141, § 1201(b)(3), inserted at 
end ‘‘Any person who violates section 203(m)(2)(B) of 
this title shall be subject to a civil penalty not to ex-
ceed $1,100 for each such violation, as the Secretary de-
termines appropriate, in addition to being liable to the 
employee or employees affected for all tips unlawfully 
kept, and an additional equal amount as liquidated 
damages, as described in subsection (b).’’

2008—Subsec. (e). Pub. L. 110–233 amended subsec. (e) 
generally. Prior to amendment, subsec. (e) related to 
civil penalties for certain violations. 

1996—Subsec. (e). Pub. L. 104–174 in first sentence sub-
stituted ‘‘of section 212 of this title or section 213(c)(5) 
of this title’’ for ‘‘of section 212 of this title’’ and 
‘‘under section 212 of this title or section 213(c)(5) of 
this title’’ for ‘‘under that section’’. 

1990—Subsec. (e). Pub. L. 101–508 struck out ‘‘or any 
person who repeatedly or willfully violates section 206 
or 207 of this title’’ after ‘‘issued under that section,’’ 
in first sentence, substituted ‘‘not to exceed $10,000 for 
each employee who was the subject of such a violation’’ 
for ‘‘not to exceed $1,000 for each such violation’’ in 
first sentence, inserted after first sentence ‘‘Any person 
who repeatedly or willfully violates section 206 or 207 of 
this title shall be subject to a civil penalty of not to ex-
ceed $1,000 for each such violation.’’, substituted ‘‘any 
penalty under this subsection’’ for ‘‘such penalty’’ 
wherever appearing except after ‘‘appropriateness of’’, 
substituted ‘‘Except for civil penalties collected for 
violations of section 212 of this title, sums’’ for ‘‘Sums’’ 
in last sentence, and inserted at end ‘‘Civil penalties 
collected for violations of section 212 of this title shall 
be deposited in the general fund of the Treasury.’’

1989—Subsec. (e). Pub. L. 101–157 inserted ‘‘or any per-
son who repeatedly or willfully violates section 206 or 
207 of this title’’ in introductory provisions and in-
serted ‘‘or a repeated or willful violation of section 
215(a)(2) of this title’’ in par. (3). 

1977—Subsec. (b). Pub. L. 95–151, § 10(a), (b), inserted 
provisions relating to violations of section 215(a)(3) of 
this title by employers, ‘‘(1)’’ after ‘‘section 217 of this 
title in which’’, and cl. (2), and substituted ‘‘An action 
to recover the liability prescribed in either of the pre-
ceding sentences’’ for ‘‘Action to recover such liabil-
ity’’. 

Subsec. (c). Pub. L. 95–151, § 10(c), inserted ‘‘to recover 
the liability specified in the first sentence of such sub-
section’’ after ‘‘an action by or on behalf of any em-
ployee’’. 

1974—Subsec. (b). Pub. L. 93–259, § 6(d)(1), substituted 
in second sentence ‘‘maintained against any employer 
(including a public agency) in any Federal or State 
court’’ for ‘‘maintained in any court’’. 
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Subsec. (c). Pub. L. 93–259, § 26, in revising first three 
sentences, reenacted first sentence, substituting ‘‘Sec-
retary’’ for ‘‘Secretary of Labor’’; included in second 
sentence provision for an action by the Secretary for 
liquidated damaged and deleted requirement of a writ-
ten request by an employee claiming unpaid minimum 
wages or unpaid overtime compensation with the Sec-
retary of Labor prior to an action by the Secretary and 
proviso prohibiting any action in any case involving an 
issue of law not settled finally by the courts and de-
priving courts of jurisdiction of any action or pro-
ceeding involving the issue of law not settled finally; 
and substituted third sentence ‘‘The right provided by 
subsection (b) to bring by or on behalf of any employee 
and of any employees to become a party plaintiff to 
any such action shall terminate upon the filing of a 
complaint by the Secretary in an action under this sub-
section in which a recovery is sought of unpaid min-
imum wages or unpaid overtime compensation under 
sections 206 and 207 of this title or liquidated or other 
damages provided by this subsection owing to such em-
ployee by an employer liable under the provisions of 
subsection (b), unless such action is dismissed without 
prejudice on motion of the Secretary.’’ for ‘‘The con-
sent of any employee to the bringing of any such action 
by the Secretary of Labor, unless such action is dis-
missed without prejudice on motion of the Secretary of 
Labor, shall constitute a waiver by such employee of 
any right of action he may have under subsection (b) of 
this section for such unpaid wages or unpaid overtime 
compensation and an additional equal amount as liq-
uidated damages.’’

Subsec. (e). Pub. L. 93–259, § 25(c), added subsec. (e). 
1966—Subsec. (c). Pub. L. 89–601 substituted ‘‘statutes 

of limitations’’ for ‘‘two-year statute of limitations’’. 
1961—Subsec. (b). Pub. L. 87–30 provided for termi-

nation of right of action upon commencement of in-
junction proceedings by the Secretary of Labor. 

1957—Subsec. (d). Pub. L. 85–231 added cls. (1) and (2) 
and designated existing provisions as cl. (3). 

1956—Subsec. (d). Act Aug. 8, 1956, added subsec. (d). 
1949—Subsec. (c). Act Oct. 26, 1949, added subsec. (c). 
1947—Subsec. (b). Act May 14, 1947, struck out provi-

sions relating to the designation by employee or em-
ployees of an agent or representative to maintain an 
action under this section for and on behalf of all em-
ployees similarly situated and inserted provisions re-
lating to the requirement that no employee shall be a 
party plaintiff unless he gives his consent in writing 
and such consent is filed with the court.

Statutory Notes and Related Subsidiaries 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 2022 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 117–328 effective 120 days after 
Dec. 29, 2022, see section 103(b) of div. KK of Pub. L. 
117–328, set out as a note under section 215 of this title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 2008 AMENDMENT 

Pub. L. 110–233, title III, § 302(b), May 21, 2008, 122 
Stat. 922, provided that: ‘‘The amendments made by 
this section [amending this section] shall take effect on 
the date of the enactment of this Act [May 21, 2008].’’

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1977 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 95–151 effective Jan. 1, 1978, 
see section 15(a) of Pub. L. 95–151, set out as a note 
under section 203 of this title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1974 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 93–259 effective May 1, 1974, 
see section 29(a) of Pub. L. 93–259, set out as a note 
under section 202 of this title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1966 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 89–601 effective Feb. 1, 1967, 
except as otherwise provided, see section 602 of Pub. L. 
89–601, set out as a note under section 203 of this title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1961 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 87–30 effective upon expira-
tion of one hundred and twenty days after May 5, 1961, 
except as otherwise provided, see section 14 of Pub. L. 
87–30, set out as a note under section 203 of this title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1957 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 85–231 effective upon expira-
tion of ninety days from Aug. 30, 1957, see section 2 of 
Pub. L. 85–231, set out as a note under section 213 of 
this title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1949 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by act Oct. 26, 1949, effective ninety days 
after Oct. 26, 1949, see section 16(a) of act Oct. 26, 1949, 
set out as a note under section 202 of this title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1947 AMENDMENT 

Act May 14, 1947, ch. 52, § 5(b), 61 Stat. 87, provided 
that: ‘‘The amendment made by subsection (a) of this 
section [amending this section] shall be applicable only 
with respect to actions commenced under the Fair 
Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended [this chapter], 
on or after the date of the enactment of this Act [May 
14, 1947].’’

LIABILITY OF STATE, POLITICAL SUBDIVISION, OR INTER-
STATE GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY FOR VIOLATIONS BE-
FORE APRIL 15, 1986, RESPECTING ANY EMPLOYEE NOT 
COVERED UNDER SPECIAL ENFORCEMENT POLICY 

Pub. L. 99–150, § 2(c)(1), Nov. 13, 1985, 99 Stat. 788, pro-
vided that: ‘‘No State, political subdivision of a State, 
or interstate governmental agency shall be liable under 
section 16 of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 [29 
U.S.C. 216] for a violation of section 6 [29 U.S.C. 206] (in 
the case of a territory or possession of the United 
States), 7 [29 U.S.C. 207], or 11(c) [29 U.S.C. 211(c)] (as it 
relates to section 7) of such Act occurring before April 
15, 1986, with respect to any employee of the State, po-
litical subdivision, or agency who would not have been 
covered by such Act [this chapter] under the Secretary 
of Labor’s special enforcement policy on January 1, 
1985, and published in sections 775.2 and 775.4 of title 29 
of the Code of Federal Regulations.’’

EFFECT OF AMENDMENTS BY PUBLIC LAW 99–150 ON 
PUBLIC AGENCY LIABILITY RESPECTING ANY EM-
PLOYEE COVERED UNDER SPECIAL ENFORCEMENT POL-
ICY 

Pub. L. 99–150, § 7, Nov. 13, 1985, 99 Stat. 791, provided 
that: ‘‘The amendments made by this Act [see Short 
Title of 1985 Amendment note set out under section 201 
of this title] shall not affect whether a public agency 
which is a State, political subdivision of a State, or an 
interstate governmental agency is liable under section 
16 of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 [29 U.S.C. 
216] for a violation of section 6, 7, or 11 of such Act [29 
U.S.C. 206, 207, 211] occurring before April 15, 1986, with 
respect to any employee of such public agency who 
would have been covered by such Act [this chapter] 
under the Secretary of Labor’s special enforcement pol-
icy on January 1, 1985, and published in section 775.3 of 
title 29 of the Code of Federal Regulations.’’

RULES, REGULATIONS, AND ORDERS PROMULGATED WITH 
REGARD TO 1966 AMENDMENTS 

Secretary authorized to promulgate necessary rules, 
regulations, or orders on and after the date of the en-
actment of Pub. L. 89–601, Sept. 23, 1966, with regard to 
the amendments made by Pub. L. 89–601, see section 602 
of Pub. L. 89–601, set out as a note under section 203 of 
this title. 

CONSTRUCTION OF 1949 AMENDMENTS WITH PORTAL-TO-
PORTAL ACT OF 1947

Act Oct. 26, 1949, ch. 736, § 16(b), 63 Stat. 920, provided 
that: ‘‘Except as provided in section 3(o) [29 U.S.C. 
203(o)] and in the last sentence of section 16(c) of the 
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Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended [29 U.S.C. 
216(c)], no amendment made by this Act [amending sec-
tions 202, 208, 211 to 217 of this title] shall be construed 
as amending, modifying, or repealing any provisions of 
the Portal-to-Portal Act of 1947.’’

RETROACTIVE EFFECT OF 1949 AMENDMENTS; 
LIMITATION OF ACTIONS 

Act Oct. 26, 1949, ch. 736, § 16(d), 63 Stat. 920, provided 
that actions based upon acts or omissions occurring 
prior to the effective date of act Oct. 26, 1949, which was 
to be effective ninety days after Oct. 26, 1949, were not 
prevented by the amendments made to sections 202 to 
208, and 211 to 217 of this title by such act, so long as 
such actions were instituted within two years from 
such effective date.

Executive Documents 

TRANSFER OF FUNCTIONS 

Functions relating to enforcement and administra-
tion of equal pay provisions vested by subsecs. (b) and 
(c) of this section in Secretary of Labor transferred to 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission by Reorg. 
Plan No. 1 of 1978, § 1, 43 F.R. 19807, 92 Stat. 3781, set out 
in the Appendix to Title 5, Government Organization 
and Employees, effective Jan. 1, 1979, as provided by 
section 1–101 of Ex. Ord. No. 12106, Dec. 28, 1978, 44 F.R. 
1053. 

For transfer of functions of other officers, employees, 
and agencies of Department of Labor, with certain ex-
ceptions, to Secretary of Labor, with power to delegate, 
see Reorg. Plan No. 6 of 1950, §§ 1, 2, 15 F.R. 3174, 64 Stat. 
1263, set out in the Appendix to Title 5. 

§ 216a. Repealed. Oct. 26, 1949, ch. 736, § 16(f), 63 
Stat. 920

Section, act July 20, 1949, ch. 352, § 2, 63 Stat. 446, re-
lated to liability for overtime work performed prior to 
July 20, 1949. See section 216b of this title. 

§ 216b. Liability for overtime work performed 
prior to July 20, 1949

No employer shall be subject to any liability 
or punishment under the Fair Labor Standards 
Act of 1938, as amended [29 U.S.C. 201 et seq.] (in 
any action or proceeding commenced prior to or 
on or after January 24, 1950), on account of the 
failure of said employer to pay an employee 
compensation for any period of overtime work 
performed prior to July 20, 1949, if the com-
pensation paid prior to July 20, 1949, for such 
work was at least equal to the compensation 
which would have been payable for such work 
had section 7(d)(6) and (7) and section 7(g) of the 
Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended [29 
U.S.C. 207(d)(6), (7), (g)], been in effect at the 
time of such payment. 

(Oct. 26, 1949, ch. 736, § 16(e), 63 Stat. 920.)

Editorial Notes 

REFERENCES IN TEXT 

The Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, referred to in 
text, is act June 25, 1938, ch. 676, 52 Stat. 1060, which is 
classified generally to this chapter. For complete clas-
sification of this Act to the Code, see section 201 of this 
title and Tables. 

CODIFICATION 

Section was enacted as part of the Fair Labor Stand-
ards Amendments of 1949, and not as part of the Fair 
Labor Standards Act of 1938 which comprises this chap-
ter. 

‘‘January 24, 1950’’ substituted in text for ‘‘the effec-
tive date of this Act’’. See Effective Date of 1949 
Amendment note set out under section 202 of this title. 

§ 217. Injunction proceedings 

The district courts, together with the United 
States District Court for the District of the 
Canal Zone, the District Court of the Virgin Is-
lands, and the District Court of Guam shall have 
jurisdiction, for cause shown, to restrain viola-
tions of section 215 of this title, including in the 
case of violations of section 215(a)(2) of this title 
the restraint of any withholding of payment of 
minimum wages or overtime compensation 
found by the court to be due to employees under 
this chapter (except sums which employees are 
barred from recovering, at the time of the com-
mencement of the action to restrain the viola-
tions, by virtue of the provisions of section 255 
of this title). 

(June 25, 1938, ch. 676, § 17, 52 Stat. 1069; Oct. 26, 
1949, ch. 736, § 15, 63 Stat. 919; Pub. L. 85–231, 
§ 1(3), Aug. 30, 1957, 71 Stat. 514; Pub. L. 86–624, 
§ 21(c), July 12, 1960, 74 Stat. 417; Pub. L. 87–30, 
§ 12(b), May 5, 1961, 75 Stat. 74.)

Editorial Notes 

AMENDMENTS 

1961—Pub. L. 87–30 substituted ‘‘, including in the 
case of violations of section 215(a)(2) of this title the re-
straint of any withholding of payment of minimum 
wages or overtime compensation found by the court to 
be due to employees under this chapter (except sums 
which employees are barred from recovering, at the 
time of the commencement of the action to restrain 
the violations, by virtue of the provisions of section 255 
of this title’’ for ‘‘: Provided, That no court shall have 
jurisdiction, in any action brought by the Adminis-
trator to restrain such violations, to order the payment 
to employees of unpaid minimum wages or unpaid over-
time compensation or an additional equal amount as 
liquidated damages in such action’’. 

1960—Pub. L. 86–624 struck out reference to the Dis-
trict Court for Territory of Alaska. 

1957—Pub. L. 85–231 included the District Court of 
Guam within the enumeration of courts having juris-
diction of injunction proceedings. 

1949—Act Oct. 26, 1949, included a more precise de-
scription of United States courts having jurisdiction to 
restrain violations and inserted proviso denying juris-
diction to order payment of unpaid minimum wages, 
overtime, and liquidated damages in injunction pro-
ceedings.

Statutory Notes and Related Subsidiaries 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1961 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 87–30 effective upon expira-
tion of one hundred and twenty days after May 5, 1961, 
except as otherwise provided, see section 14 of Pub. L. 
87–30, set out as a note under section 203 of this title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1957 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by Pub. L. 85–231 effective upon expira-
tion of ninety days from Aug. 30, 1957, see section 2 of 
Pub. L. 85–231, set out as a note under section 213 of 
this title. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 1949 AMENDMENT 

Amendment by act Oct. 26, 1949, effective ninety days 
after Oct. 26, 1949, see section 16(a) of act Oct. 26, 1949, 
set out as a note under section 202 of this title. 
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